
 

 

Agenda - Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, 

Chwaraeon, a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol 
Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 4, Tŷ Hywel 

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 30 Tachwedd 

2022 

Amser: 09.30

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Lleu Williams 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddDiwylliant@senedd.cymru
------ 

Cofrestru cyn y cyfarfod  

(09.15-09.30) 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

(09.30)   

2 Yr heriau sy’n wynebu gweithlu’r diwydiant creadigol yng 

Nghymru: Sesiwn dystiolaeth gydag undebau llafur a 

chynrychiolwyr gweithwyr 

(09.30-10.30) (Tudalennau 1 - 28)  

Andy Warnock, Swyddog Rhanbarthol Cymru a De Orllewin Lloegr, Undeb y 

Cerddorion 

Simon Curtis, Trefnydd Cenedlaethol a Rhanbarthol - Cymru a De Orllewin 

Lloegr, Equity 

Carwyn Donovan, Swyddog Negodi Cymru, Undeb Darlledu, Adloniant, 

Cyfathrebu a Theatr 

 

Papur briffio gan Ymchwil y Senedd 

Ymateb i'r ymgynghoriad gan Undeb y Cerddorion 

Ymateb i'r ymgynghoriad gan Equity 

Egwyl  

(10.30-10.40) 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



 

 

3 Yr heriau sy’n wynebu gweithlu’r diwydiant creadigol yng 

Nghymru: Sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda sefydliadau’r diwydiannau 

sgrin 

(10.40-11.40) (Tudalennau 29 - 35)  

Pauline Burt, Prif Weithredwr, Ffilm Cymru 

Gabriella Ricci, Swyddog Gweithredol Cynhyrchu, Stiwdios Bad Wolf 

Allison Dowzell, Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr, Screen Alliance Wales 

Richard Pring, Sylfaenydd a Chyfarwyddwr, Wales Interactive 

 

Ymateb i'r ymgynghoriad gan Ffilm Cymru 

4 Papurau i'w nodi 

(11.40)   

4.1 Llythyr oddi wrth Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid at y Prif Weinidog ynghylch 

goblygiadau ariannol Biliau 

 (Tudalennau 36 - 38)  

4.2 Llythyr oddi wrth Gadeirydd Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion 

Gwledig at y Prif Weinidog ynghylch yr Ail Brotocol Ychwanegol i Gonfensiwn 

Cyngor Ewrop ar Seiberdroseddu 

 (Tudalennau 39 - 41)  

4.3 Llythyr oddi wrth Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Plant Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg at 

Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, Chwaraeon a 

Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol ynghylch Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru ar 

gyfer 2023-24 

 (Tudalennau 42 - 44)  

4.4 Gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan y Coleg Cymraeg Cenedlaethol yn dilyn y 

sesiwn dystiolaeth ar 13 Hydref 

 (Tudalen 45)  



 

 

4.5 Llythyr gan Gyfarwyddwr Creu Cymru at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Diwylliant, 

Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, Chwaraeon a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol ynghylch y 

posibilrwydd o sefydliad masnachol yn cymryd rheolaeth dros Neuadd Dewi 

Sant yng Nghaerdydd 

 (Tudalennau 46 - 47)  

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod hwn 

(11.40)   

6 Ôl-drafodaeth breifat 

(11.40-11.50)   

7 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Atodol ar y Bil Diogelwch 

Ar-lein: Trafod yr Adroddiad drafft 

(11.50-12.00) (Tudalennau 48 - 52)  

8 Trafod Cylch Gorchwyl drafft ar gyfer ymchwiliad yn y dyfodol i 

gysylltiadau rhwng Cymru ac Iwerddon 

(12.00-12.20) (Tudalennau 53 - 60)  

9 Trafod gohebiaeth ddrafft 

(12.20-12.30) (Tudalennau 61 - 62)  

Llythyr drafft at y Prif Weinidog 



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Musicians’ Union evidence 30 September 2022 

Introduction 
The Musicians’ Union (MU) is the trade union for musicians in the UK, with over 32,000 
members working in all sectors of the music business. 

What is the current health of the sector’s workforce, including the impacts of the pandemic, 
Brexit, and the cost of living crisis? Have workers left the sector, and what impact has this 
had? 

Many musicians are currently in an extremely difficult position due to a combination of 
factors, any one of which would be problematic on its own, but which are now affecting the 
creative industries at the same time. 

Firstly, over a decade of austerity has had a significant impact on musicians and the music 
industry. Public funding cuts combined with a decline in living standards and disposable 
income among the general public have had a variety of consequences for many people and 
organisations in the creative industries, including static or reduced pay and conditions for 
workers. For some organisations it is an achievement to still be in existence today, partly 
thanks to the workforce accepting real-terms pay cuts and making difficult compromises 
while continuing to work hard in an increasingly difficult climate. Many people who would 
have been employed on good contracts with fixed hours 15 years ago are now on zero-hour 
contracts or self-employed, with a related reduction in their conditions and job security. 

Secondly, the changing nature of the music industry, including the rise of streaming, has had 
a significant effect on musicians’ work and incomes. This was highlighted during the 
pandemic, as it became clear when live music stopped that even successful, well-known 
musicians couldn’t live on their income from recorded music.1 The MU has done extensive 
work on this through our Fix Streaming campaign, and recently expressed our concern that 
the Competition and Markets Authority has so far decided not to proceed with a full 
investigation of the music streaming market,2 in addition to our initial submission to the 
market study.3 The House of Commons Digital, Culture, Media and Sport Committee report 
into the economics of music streaming recognised this, as outlined by the first paragraph of 
their conclusions and recommendations: ‘Streaming has undoubtedly helped save the music 
industry following two decades of digital piracy but it is clear that what has been saved does 
not work for everyone … Streaming needs a complete reset.’4 

Thirdly, Brexit is still causing significant issues for musicians. The number of musicians who 
are contacting us seeking help with what would have previously been problem-free travel to 
and from, and activity in, Europe is a clear indication of the confusion still being caused by 
Brexit, which means musicians have to spend more time and money to make work in Europe 
possible. Given the significant audiences and general investment into culture and the arts in 
much of Europe this has a direct effect on many musicians’ livelihoods as well as talent 

1 https://www.theguardian.com/business/2020/nov/24/nadine-shah-i-cant-pay-the-rent-on-unfair-music-
streaming-revenues  
2 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/6322017fd3bf7f33d6200ca8/Musicians__Union_21.9.22.pdf 
3 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/62541ab48fa8f54a89b54bc7/Musician_s_Union.pdf  
4 https://committees.parliament.uk/publications/6739/documents/72525/default/  

CCWLSIR CIWF 14 
Senedd Cymru | Welsh Parliament 
Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, Chwaraeon, a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol 
Culture, Communications, Welsh Language, Sport, and International Relations Committee 
Gweithlu'r diwydiant creadigol yng Nghymru / Creative industry workforce in Wales 
Ymateb gan Undeb y Cerddorion / Response from Musicians' Union 

Tudalen y pecyn 13

https://www.theguardian.com/business/2020/nov/24/nadine-shah-i-cant-pay-the-rent-on-unfair-music-streaming-revenues
https://www.theguardian.com/business/2020/nov/24/nadine-shah-i-cant-pay-the-rent-on-unfair-music-streaming-revenues
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/6322017fd3bf7f33d6200ca8/Musicians__Union_21.9.22.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/62541ab48fa8f54a89b54bc7/Musician_s_Union.pdf
https://committees.parliament.uk/publications/6739/documents/72525/default/


 

 

 

development in the UK music industry. This was recently recognised by the All Party 
Parliamentary Group on Music in their report ‘Let the Music Move – A New Deal for Touring’: 
‘Our work found that while limited progress has been made, UK music workers are facing 
more costs, more complications and getting fewer opportunities after leaving the EU … 
Other reports have shown how these isues extend across the cultural sector … and these 
barriers are particularly acute for less established and young artists. In the long term this 
threatens the health of the industry, the joy it provides to the UK and the revenue it brings to 
the Treasury.’5 
 
Finally, musicians are now being badly affected by the cost of living crisis, at a time when the 
recovery from the Covid-19 pandemic was still ongoing. Our current concerns about these 
issues were set out in our submission to the Committee’s inquiry on increasing costs.6 UK 
Music’s ‘This Is Music 2022’ report7 sets out that a third of the workforce left the sector in 
2020, most of them freelance musicians, with employment 26% lower in 2021 (at 145,000 
people) than 2019 (197,00 people), and that many of those who fell through the gaps of 
government support either retired, retrained, or sought alternative employment. 
 
How financially stable is the sector and how suitable are pay and working conditions? 
Financial stability as well as pay and conditions vary significantly across different areas of 
the creative industries in Wales and across the UK. Organisations supported by public 
funding (including from the Arts Councils, Welsh Government, UK Government, and local 
councils), including schools, the BBC, S4C, and many orchestras, are seeing their funding 
being further eroded in real terms after austerity by high levels of inflation. However, other 
businesses, including international broadcasters and media companies, are potentially in a 
very different situation, with more freedom to invest, borrow, and grow. The MU, like the 
other creative unions, has various collective agreements with specific organisations (such as 
the BBC, ITV, WNO, and Sinfonia Cymru), as well as industry bodies (such as the BPI, TAC, 
PACT, and ABO) that set terms and minimum rates for the engagement of musicians, as 
well as promulgated rates and template contracts for work such as live performance. 
 
There is currently a mixed picture, as some shows and organisations are doing well, but 
other organisations and venues we have spoken to indicate they have been facing difficulties 
since re-opening after lockdown. These include different audience behaviour, such as 
reduced advance ticket sales, with more ticket purchases happening closer to gigs, and 
more no-shows (which mean reduced food and drink sales regardless of the ticket 
purchase). 
 
Increased energy costs are a major issue and a new threat to financial stability across much 
of the creative industries, with significant increases in costs for venues and studios that 
aren’t on fixed term contracts, even with the UK Government’s energy scheme. That scheme 
is also currently only scheduled to last for six months, which leaves significant uncertainty in 
relation to organisations’ budgets that, as noted above, are already being reduced in real 
terms by inflation. Musicians specifically are facing increases in their personal and business 
costs – again, even with the UK Government’s energy scheme – as well as real terms cuts 
to fees and income which aren’t increasing in line with inflation. 
 
Most musicians have portfolio careers that involve a variety of different engagements with 
different contractual arrangements, as pay, contracts, and working conditions vary 

 
5 https://www.ukmusic.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/APPG-on-Music_Let-the-Music-Move_A-New-Deal-
For-Touring.pdf  
6 https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s129498/IIC%2027%20Musicians%20Union.pdf  
7 https://www.ukmusic.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/This-Is-Music-2022.pdf  

Tudalen y pecyn 14

https://www.ukmusic.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/APPG-on-Music_Let-the-Music-Move_A-New-Deal-For-Touring.pdf
https://www.ukmusic.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/APPG-on-Music_Let-the-Music-Move_A-New-Deal-For-Touring.pdf
https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s129498/IIC%2027%20Musicians%20Union.pdf
https://www.ukmusic.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/This-Is-Music-2022.pdf


 

 

 

significantly across the music industry. They range from full and part time employees, to 
employees or workers doing significant amounts of work on zero hours contracts, and many 
people doing significant amounts of self-employed work. 
 
Many musicians also work under agreements including recording, publishing, licensing, 
agency, session, and management contracts that cover activity including live performances, 
recording, song writing, and composing, along with the associated intellectual property. 
Royalties from those contracts as well as PRS, MCPS, and PPL form an important part of 
many musicians’ income streams. Unfortunately, many venues, labels, and publishers are 
less willing to negotiate on contracts to secure a fair and reasonable outcome for all parties 
than we would hope, while some companies actively encourage young and inexperienced 
musicians to pay upfront for benefits that may not materialise as promised. Buyouts have 
become an increasingly common feature of contracts for song writers and composers in 
recent years, which we are working against through the Composers Against Buyouts 
campaign and Fair Commissioning Manifesto, in partnership with the Ivors Academy.8 
 
Unfortunately, many organisations, including those that receive public funding, still offer poor 
terms and conditions to musicians and other creative workers and don’t engage with union 
rates and terms or negotiation and discussion. Some work carried out by musicians – 
including teaching instrumental music lessons – has also become increasingly fractured and 
casualised over the past decade, with a reduction in terms from stable and secure employed 
work to zero hours or self-employed work (including potential false self-employment), as 
noted above. This, combined with the often-variable nature of musicians’ income and 
difficulties accessing support (including sick pay) and benefits compared to people in more 
traditional employment, means there is a potential lack of resilience among musicians that is 
a particular concern in the current cost of living crisis following soon after the pandemic. The 
nature of many musicians’ work and contracts means that they often lack job security as well 
as the rights, ability, and confidence to address issues. They are therefore in a vulnerable 
position which can lead to a tolerance of, and difficulty in challenging, problems and poor 
behaviour by individuals and organisations on issues from health and safety to 
discrimination. We also know that many musicians have encountered problems with 
accessing benefits such as Universal Credit during the last two and a half years, particularly 
if they have portfolio careers and do significant amounts of self-employed work. 
 
Given that, it's essential that fair work – including fair pay and terms, for activity carried out 
now and in the future, as well as intellectual property and royalties – is encouraged and 
required across the music industry and broader creative industries in Wales, in order to 
ensure a vibrant, diverse, inclusive, and growing sector. There should be a clear expectation 
that all organisations in the creative industries receiving public funding use union rates and 
terms and engage in discussions and negotiations with the creative unions on a social 
partnership basis, including formal collective bargaining for large organisations. This should 
be a clear element of the ‘cultural contract’, which is a promising concept that needs further 
work and engagement. This would also be a helpful and effective extension of the principles 
in the Social Partnership and Public Procurement (Wales) Bill to the creative industries, 
beyond the public bodies that are formally subject to the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015. 
 
How equal, diverse and inclusive is the sector? How can this be improved? 
The creative industries in Wales have had problems with equality, diversity, and inclusion 
and more work is needed in this area, but the sector is making progress, with the support of 
funders including the Arts Council of Wales (ACW), Creative Wales, and PRS Foundation 

 
8 https://musiciansunion.org.uk/campaigns/composers-against-buyouts  

Tudalen y pecyn 15

https://musiciansunion.org.uk/campaigns/composers-against-buyouts


 

 

 

(e.g. through Power Up9). Funding is important to support diversity and inclusion in relation 
to talent development, as well as accessibility for venues and studios, especially at a 
grassroots level. The MU is committed to supporting this work, through our own initiatives 
such as our Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion Committee, equality network groups,10 and 
SafeSpace scheme,11 as well as in partnership with others. It’s also important to note that 
fair work, with fair pay and conditions as well as the right support, is a crucial requirement for 
increasing the diversity of the sector. On the other hand, in the past we have heard concerns 
about the way certain genres and artists have been treated, and it’s important to create 
opportunities to raise problems and discuss these issues at a high level. 
 
Cult Cymru’s work on wellbeing facilitators12 is an important development in this area, and 
we are keen to explore the roll out of wellbeing facilitators to music, where work can be even 
more isolated and dispersed than other areas of the creative industries. The nature of the 
music industry and the way many musicians are engaged means they are often reluctant to 
draw attention to poor treatment out of fear of losing work, so it’s crucial that they are 
supported and that organisations have appropriate systems and policies in place to deal with 
issues including discrimination, harassment, and other inappropriate behaviour for all types 
of workers, not just employees. 
 
How sufficient are skills and training opportunities? Are there gaps, and how should they be 
filled? 
The launch of the new National Plan for Music Education in Wales was a very welcome step 
to ensure that there is a formal strategy in relation to music education, a crucial starting point 
for talent and audience development. We were pleased that the plan recognised the 
importance of the music education workforce and committed to a review of teachers’ pay 
and conditions. However, it is also important to note that the plan has not actually created a 
‘national music service’, which could be confusing for the public. We still have some 
concerns about the plan, including the level of funding (which is a significant increase but not 
a huge amount compared to the level of ambition), the systems for accountability, 
governance, and evaluation, and ensuring that schools engage with the plan, music services 
and teachers. We are continuing to engage with Welsh Government, the WLGA, and music 
services on those issues. 
 
The creation of Creative Wales within Welsh Government has been very positive for the 
sector, and we are pleased that they have engaged positively with the MU and the other 
creative unions in the spirit of social partnership. The Creative Sills Action Plan and Creative 
Skills Fund, supported by the Creative Skills Advisory Panel, are also positive, and we look 
forward to continuing our engagement with them, particularly in relation to talent 
development and ensuring that musicians from all genres, backgrounds, and areas of Wales 
can be supported to develop their skills. 
 
It’s important to note that the Wales Union Learning Fund, a broad scheme that supports 
initiatives across many unions and sectors of the economy, has enabled excellent work on 
skills and training for workers in the creative industries though the Creative Unions Learning 
Together ‘CULT Cymru’ project. 
 

 
9 https://prsfoundation.com/2022/09/06/power-up-announces-details-of-new-partnership-with-arts-council-
of-wales/  
10 https://musiciansunion.org.uk/about-the-mu/equality-diversity-and-inclusion/equality-member-networks  
11 https://musiciansunion.org.uk/safespace  
12 https://cult.cymru/en/wellbeing-facilitor-pilot-grant-for-production-companies/  

Tudalen y pecyn 16

https://prsfoundation.com/2022/09/06/power-up-announces-details-of-new-partnership-with-arts-council-of-wales/
https://prsfoundation.com/2022/09/06/power-up-announces-details-of-new-partnership-with-arts-council-of-wales/
https://musiciansunion.org.uk/about-the-mu/equality-diversity-and-inclusion/equality-member-networks
https://musiciansunion.org.uk/safespace
https://cult.cymru/en/wellbeing-facilitor-pilot-grant-for-production-companies/


 

 

 

In time the National Plan for Music Education, the Creative Skills Action Plan, and the Wales 
Union Learning Fund, as well as HE and FE providers, should be able to offer a good 
framework for skills and training opportunities as well as talent and audience development in 
Wales. However, a long-standing weakness in the music industry in Wales is the lack of 
joined up work, so it’s important to encourage greater collaboration as well as clear 
resources and guidance in the future. Each element also requires sufficient funding in order 
to be successful and ensure that opportunities to make, learn about, and experience music 
of all types and genres are available to people from all backgrounds and areas of Wales, 
and that support is available from beginners up to a professional level. 
 
What has been the impact of support from public bodies such as the Welsh Government, 
and is further support needed? 
The support from Welsh Government and ACW during the covid-19 pandemic – much of it 
through the Cultural Recovery Fund and related Freelancer Fund – was crucial and very 
welcome. The music industry and broader creative industries in Wales would have been 
devastated without that specific support, and funding for individuals from ACW and the 
Freelancer Fund made a real difference to the musicians and other creative workers who 
had fallen through the gaps of the UK Government schemes, even if it couldn’t fill those gaps 
completely. 
 
Over the past nine months both ACW and Creative Wales have sought to move back to a 
form of ‘new normal’, and in that context the Creative Wales Music Capital Fund and Music 
Revenue Fund were both positive funding schemes. We hope to see more of these schemes 
in the future as well as, ideally, schemes that provide support direct to musicians to 
encourage their growth in addition to other initiatives like BBC Horizons. 
 
ACW has also initiated an Investment Review consultation that we are pleased to be 
involved in. We have some concerns about ACW’s potential new approach to funding set out 
in that consultation, in relation to issues such as the long-term stability needed to run the 
largest organisations effectively, how ‘performance’ is defined, and how positive approaches 
to social partnership and fair work are encouraged, and look forward to engaging further with 
them on those issues. 
 
However, as outlined in our submission about increasing costs further support is needed in 
relation to the cost of living crisis. Given the overall direction of funding over the past 
decade, organisations are finding it difficult to offer pay rises even approaching inflation, as 
well as to be sustainable and effective. We aren’t currently aware of any plans to provide 
further support to mitigate those issues, which is needed and could take a variety of forms. 
 
We would also urge the Welsh Government to continue to consider how it can go further in 
supporting the creative industries and creative industry workforce in Wales beyond funding. 
A key example of this is conditionality in funding, to direct organisations to engage with the 
Welsh music industry including Welsh and Wales-based musicians, and to require or at least 
encourage fair work. For instance – and we understand there has been an agreement for 
this to happen – film and TV productions supported by Creative Wales should include a 
certain level of music written and/or performed by Welsh or Wales-based musicians, and any 
music commissioned or paid for in relation to those productions should be in line with the MU 
and Ivors Academy Fair Commissioning Manifesto 
 
Finally, support for music and the wider creative industries from local government varies and 
has been eroded by austerity over the past decade. In addition to increasing this funding we 
would like to see more engagement on music, culture, and the creative industries by local 
government, including through public sector boards, as well as more specific advisory 
groups or boards on the night-time economy and culture/creative industries. 

Tudalen y pecyn 17



 

 

 

 
Conclusion 
Overall musicians in Wales are currently facing a variety of difficulties, in relation to broad 
issues such as Brexit, combined with the aftermath of the Covid-19 pandemic and the cost of 
living crisis. 
 
In the short-term action is needed in relation to the cost of living crisis, and our submission to 
the committee’s inquiry into increasing costs set out a number of measures that could and 
should be taken in relation to that this autumn, by the Welsh Government and UK 
Government. That submission was written before further details were announced about the 
Energy Bill Relief Scheme for businesses. However, the fact that support only lasts for six 
month before focusing on unspecified ‘vulnerable industries’ is very concerning due to the 
uncertainty that businesses still face in the medium term. Further urgent action is needed to 
support musicians in Wales, the Welsh music industry, and the broader creative industries 
workforce in Wales through the cost of living crisis, otherwise a significant sector that was 
supported through the Covid-19 pandemic will be devastated and that investment wasted. 
 
Beyond that there are some positives for musicians in Wales, including the opportunities 
presented by the new National Plan for Music Education, the Creative Skills Action Plan and 
Creative Skills Fund, as well as ongoing work on equality, diversity, and inclusion. Our 
ongoing engagement with ACW, Creative Wales, and Welsh Government more broadly is 
also positive. There are challenges in relation to encouraging fair work, as well as equality, 
diversity, and inclusion, in relation to the creative industry workforce in Wales but we are 
confident that a social partnership approach between those public bodies, the MU and other 
creative unions, and organisations, can see further progress on these and other issues faced 
by the workforce during the current Senedd term. 
 
Welsh Government needs to ensure that its work on, and commitment to, fair work and 
social partnership extends to the creative industries, to work and jobs beyond traditional 
employment, and – as much as possible - to organisations receiving public funding and then 
the private sector as a whole, as well as those covered by the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and Social Partnership and Public Procurement (Wales) Bill. 
If the Social Partnership Bill is passed then in turn the Future Generations Commissioner 
also needs to ensure they continue to engage with fair work, and issues relating to it, across 
all sectors. 
 
Finally, in order to improve the current situation for musicians and the broader creative 
industries in Wales progress is needed on the major issues of Brexit and streaming, with 
continuing pressure on the UK Government to explore and implement solutions in those 
areas. 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 18



CCWLSIR CIWF 13 

Senedd Cymru | Welsh Parliament 

Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, Chwaraeon, a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol | 

Culture, Communications, Welsh Language, Sport, and International Relations Committee  

Gweithlu'r diwydiant creadigol yng Nghymru / Creative industry workforce in Wales 

Ymateb gan Ecwiti Cymru/ Response from Equity Wales  

 

 

 

Culture, Communications, Welsh Language, Sport, and International Relations Committee 

Equity Submission – Inquiry into the challenges facing the creative industry workforce in Wales 

 

Equity welcomes the opportunity afforded by the committee to respond to this inquiry.   

 

This submission has been prepared by Equity, the leading trade union and representative 

stakeholder for performers and creative practitioners in the entertainment industry. We 

represent over 47,000 performers and creative practitioners across the UK including actors, 

directors, designers, choreographers, dancers, singers, entertainers, comedians, stage 

management and audio artists. Our members work on stage, on TV sets, on the catwalk, in 

film studios, in recording studios, in night clubs, in pubs, in community settings and in circus 

tents.  

 

In Wales Equity represents almost 1,700 creative workers across the sector, and through its 

democratic structure provides the industry body for the creative worker and its collective 

voice.  

 

Introduction 
 

Whilst our submission does respond to the entire series of questions in the call for evidence, 

many of these issues are intertwined because of the precarity of work within the sector. We 

have aimed to separate them out into meaningful responses to the questions posed by the 

committee but there may be repetition of points covering the same areas across the whole 

submission.  

 

What is the current health of the sector’s workforce, including the impacts of 

the pandemic, Brexit and cost of living crisis? Have workers left the sector, and 

what impact has this had? 
 

The sector’s workforce are facing a crisis of income. The perfect storm of the last few years 

with its combination of unfavourable circumstances mean that without swift intervention we 

risk losing the foundation that the creative sector is built upon: the people, talent and 

experience of the workforce.  

Creative workers need action now. Throughout the pandemic Equity members had to take 

on debt or additional debt as UK government schemes proved inadequate and patchy at 

best. Most creative workers are self-employed with no recourse to the furlough scheme, yet 

40% were excluded from the SEISS. Of those that were able to access the scheme, 59% did 

not find it sufficient to meet their basic needs. We recognise the role that Welsh Government 

played and the financial support through the Freelancers Fund offered, for our members in 

Wales this provided much needed funds at times of desperation.  

Impact of the pandemic 

Creative workers endured almost two years of devastating blows, with lockdowns, tier systems 

and the cancellation of all indoor and outdoor performances. Tentative attempts to return 

to work in the sector repeatedly met with disappointment as social distancing restrictions 

Tudalen y pecyn 19



 

Page 2 of 10 
 

tightened, often with little or no notice, and shifting timelines made it impossible for many 

creatives to plan for the future either artistically or financially. 

Amid ongoing uncertainty some were able to return to their workplaces – such as those in the 

film and TV sectors – but they faced obstacles including insurance exclusions and the removal 

of performing artists from quarantine exemptions. All of this alongside the stress of having to 

work whilst increasing the risk to their families when they returned home despite the stringent 

testing and COVID protocols developed by the sector in consultation with the unions. 

The reality for most of our members, including thousands of people who regularly work 

throughout the community in care homes or delivering theatre in education, was that there 

was no route back to work any time soon and many faced increased anxiety about work 

prospects over the two year period as well as financial hardship. This left too many people 

leaving the sector, including disproportionately those from marginalised groups, including 

women, Black, and deaf and disabled workers.  

Brexit 

As the committee will be aware, in December 2020 the UK and EU signed the Trade and 

Cooperation Agreement which governs our trading and security relationship. Despite Equity’s 

call to protect creative professionals and their ability to tour freely, the Trade Deal has made 

it very difficult for many of our members to work in the EU. Expensive visas, different work 

permits for different countries and inconsistent tax and security rules are just some of the 

obstacles workers now face.  

What our members tell us 

- 43% of Equity members report that Brexit has negatively affected their confidence in 

being able to find work in the arts and entertainment industry 

- 31% have seen job advertisements and/or casting breakdowns asking for EU passport 

holders only to apply, with this number rising since the end of the pandemic restrictions 

on travel. 

- 14% have been asked by their agent to confirm if they are an EU passport holder for 

the purpose of finding work.  

In 2021 Equity, together with a number of unions, industry bodies and MPs from across the 

political spectrum, called upon the UK Government to fix the Brexit chaos.  

We called for: 

- A bespoke Visa Waiver Agreement with the EU for the creative sector 

- Bilateral agreements with key individual EU Member States 

- Emergency funding to cover additional costs when undertaking work in Europe 

- Reduced impact of new road haulage and cross-trade rules 

Their continued inability to resolve the problems faced by our members travelling to the EU 

27 for work was mixed with a number of misleading statements about the level of progress 

they had achieved.  

On the 4th August 2021 the UK Government announced that nineteen EU member states 

would allow performers visa and work permit free short term touring work. This was welcome, 

as previous announcements had only covered visa provisions. Indeed since January 2021 all 

UK nationals can travel for up to 90 days out of every 180 in the Schengen area. However 

permission to work is a different matter and the announcement by the then Culture Secretary 

Tudalen y pecyn 20



 

Page 3 of 10 
 

Oliver Dowden MP appeared to imply this ability in a more standardised way by referring to 

work permits.  

Beyond the five-paragraph press release from the UK Government no further detail was 

forthcoming. We continue to press for answers to the following questions:  

• What is meant by ‘short term’ touring? Do these provisions apply only to productions 

which move within or between states, or do they include British artists travelling to 

Europe to take part in a production at a single venue? 

• How do work permit-free regimes interconnect to facilitate multi-state touring? 

• Is the definition of short term touring common to all 19 EU member states on your list? 

• Is the definition of touring or the waivers common to all 19 countries? Presuming it is 

not, when can we expect a clear and accessible list for artists and producers 

summarising the different regimes? 

• From what date does any new regime apply? 

• Do any exemptions include vital artists and staff beyond performers and musicians – 

specifically stage management, directors, designers, choreographers and other 

creatives? 

• If you have not secured common agreement in all 19 countries, what steps are 

being taken to harmonise agreement? 

• There continues to be a singular focus on live entertainment. As critical as this is, 

what progress has been made on equivalent visa and work permit waiver 

programmes for on TV, film, audio, new media, and other recorded work? 

Over a year has passed and proposed solutions and responses have not materialised despite 

our collective efforts.  

The UK Government also need to deliver on their promise to preserve and strengthen the UK 

legislative platform following our exit from the EU. We would welcome the UK Government 

delivering on their proposed employment bill, something we call for alongside other unions in 

the aftermath of the P&O scandal. 

https://www.tuc.org.uk/news/tuc-unions-demand-business-secretary-names-date-

employment-bill-wake-po-scandal  

 

Cost of Living Crisis 

In our most recent published survey of members across the UK in June 2022 we reported how 

performers and creative workers were struggling to survive due to the cost-of-living crisis – 

with the majority expected to struggle to meet essential costs and many considering leaving 

the profession. Whilst we have not followed up this survey at the time of response to this 

inquiry, we know that the essential costs have only continued to rise and we have seen the 

number of members in crisis increase dramatically through our growing casework load.  

One member told us: "I don’t eat and my health has declined. I’ve even turned the gas off 

to my own home at stopcock as I can’t afford it. I sold my TV as I can’t afford a TV license. I 

don’t live, I exist.” 

• 60% of respondents anticipated difficulty in meeting essential costs (e.g. housing, 

rent, food, childcare, utility bills) due to the cost-of-living crisis. 

• 47% have already experienced difficulties in meeting essential costs during the 

period 2021-22. 

• 33% have seen their level of personal debt increase in the last year. 

• 41% feel negative about their prospects for work in the entertainment industry over 

the next 12 months (24% feel positive). 

Tudalen y pecyn 21

https://www.tuc.org.uk/news/tuc-unions-demand-business-secretary-names-date-employment-bill-wake-po-scandal
https://www.tuc.org.uk/news/tuc-unions-demand-business-secretary-names-date-employment-bill-wake-po-scandal


 

Page 4 of 10 
 

• 19% anticipate having to leave the entertainment industry due to the cost-of-living 

crisis (36% do not anticipate this, 46% are not sure). 

The survey, conducted between May and June 2022, further found: 

• 70% of members are currently or will shortly need to work more hours and days just to 

cope with essential living costs. 

• 89% think the cost-of-living crisis will force those on low incomes and artists from 

working class backgrounds out of the industry. 

• 72% think the cost-of-living crisis will put added pressure on young artists, new 

entrants and graduates. 

• 65% think the cost-of-living crisis will make things worse for marginalised groups, 

including women, Black, and deaf and disabled artists. 

Alongside these findings, analysis of UK Government data shows that Black people and 

young people have already left the profession in droves following the devastating impact of 

Covid-19. If the precarious nature of work has only worsened there is little chance of this talent 

drain being reversed. Comparing DCMS workforce estimates for January 2019 to December 

2019 and October 2020 to September 2021, Equity found that: 

• The number of young people (aged 16-24) working in music, performing and visual 

arts has fallen by 19% (compared with a 14% increase for people aged 55-64). 

• The number of Black / African / Caribbean / Black British people working in music, 

performing and visual arts has fallen by 39% (compared with 9% fall of White 

people). 

The ‘Broadcasters facing diverse talent drain’ report from Ofcom 

https://www.ofcom.org.uk/news-centre/2021/broadcasters-facing-diverse-talent-drain 

published in September 2022 also shows that female employees were more likely to leave TV 

and radio industries and the proportion of TV employees who are disabled projected to fall 

over the next five years. 

 

How financially stable is the sector and how suitable are pay and working 

conditions? 

The creative industries as a sector is multi-faceted in its combination of both subsidised and 

commercial enterprises across all areas. Public subsidy, despite its proven economic benefit 

to the economy (£1 invested brings a return of between £2 and £7 depending on the area), 

has consistently fallen over recent years. The funding available through Arts Council Wales 

has effectively been standstill for many with companies having to provide more for less 

investment. The film and television sector has seen the impact of the large institutions like 

Netflix, Amazon and Apple TV bring huge investment into both production and studios, but 

the investment in public service broadcasting has not kept pace and the continued 

uncertainty over the Television License Fee, and by association the funding of both the BBC 

and S4C, has huge implications on the ability of both these broadcasters to compete with 

the large institutions. 

The strength of our industry is built on the strong and equitable collectively bargained 

agreements reached between trade unions and engagers. The agreements that Equity have 

put in place across different sectors, such as film, TV, theatre, and dance, offer the best 

possible protection for the creative workforce by providing for the minimum terms and 

conditions for professional engagements. This industrial framework also provides a level of 

certainty for both the performers and the engagers and has created a landscape where 

individuals can flourish as workers. This has helped establish the UK as a centre of creativity 

and inward investment.  

Tudalen y pecyn 22

https://www.ofcom.org.uk/news-centre/2021/broadcasters-facing-diverse-talent-drain


 

Page 5 of 10 
 

 

Equity also secure some ongoing payments for the exploitation of performers’ work in the UK 

and globally through our industrial agreements. Our in-house Distribution Services, which has 

been operating for over five years, has paid out over £60 million in royalties and contractual 

secondary payments to tens of thousands of performers. All payments administered by the 

distributions team are derived from our collectively bargained agreements with 

broadcasters, film studios, TV production and theatrical recording companies.  

 

The development of technology is already challenging the collective agreements we have 

in place. Production teams are using AI to reanimate the image, voice or likeness of 

deceased performers. Not only does this raise ethical questions, but also challenges for 

performers’ unions across the globe as this innovation would not be covered in historic 

collective bargaining agreements. Producers and engagers across the Film and TV industry 

must work with Equity to negotiate new provisions covering performance synthetisation and 

ensure there is a system of consent and payment when historic performances are utilised by 

AI technologies, including after the event of a members’ death.  

 

There are some areas of the creative sector where there are limited collectively bargained 

industry agreements in place, such as audio books, games, corporate work, radio 

commercials, TV, internet and digital commercials, modelling, music videos and variety work. 

In these sectors where there is a lack of industry regulation, our members are often presented 

with take it or leave it contracts and asked to waive their moral rights and authorship entirely. 

The absence of an ability to set industry standard minimum terms and conditions means that 

salary levels are driven downwards, especially at times of global financial instability.  

Equity are calling on employers, producers and engagers in the creative sector to urgently 

address the harmful impacts of the cost of living crisis and the pandemic by improving pay 

and conditions within the sector in order to protect the sustainability and diversity of the 

workforce. We can use the principle championed in Wales of Social Partnership where 

funders, including Creative Wales and Arts Council Wales, in collaboration with the employers 

and trades unions can help address the impact by entering into meaningful collective 

bargaining and helping to remove the concerning elements of in-work poverty we are seeing 

in some companies currently in receipt of public funding.  

 

Bullying, harassment and inappropriate Behaviour  
A safe working environment where everyone is treated with dignity and respect, and bullying 

and harassment is not tolerated, is vital to safeguard the future of the creative industry. It is 

intrinsic to successful production that we move towards a culture in which everyone feels 

able to call out unacceptable behaviour and that nobody is above being challenged and 

no one is untouchable.  

 

Equity is leading an important piece of work in this area. We recently organised a historic 

meeting of industry representatives involved in the working life cycle of actors in TV met to 

discuss how everyone can contribute to a respectful workplace and to agree how concerns 

should be raised if there is inappropriate behaviour. The group agreed to the following 

principles:  

 

- Safe casting and audition spaces: professional recruitment standards to be adopted 

and auditions undertaken in appropriate workspaces.  

- Policies: producers to have clear respect at work policies which include a process for 

making and addressing concerns and complaints of bullying and harassment.  

- Accessible information: information shared with cast and crew about how concerns 

can be raised either if they are the victim of or see inappropriate behaviour (e.g. 

information on call sheets and displayed in communal areas, access to support and 

whistleblowing helplines, details of the safeguarding contact for each production).  

Tudalen y pecyn 23



 

Page 6 of 10 
 

- Anti-bullying and harassment training: to be completed by cast and crew before they 

start work.  

- Safeguarding contact: a suitably trained, senior member of the production team who 

can be contacted and who can proactively make any necessary adjustments.  

- Nudity and simulated sex acts: notification to be given in advance and in writing 

about the scope and extent of nudity and/or simulated sex requested, followed by 

discussion and agreement with the artist. For scenes of an intimate nature, an 

intimacy co-ordinator is to be engaged if acceptable to the actors involved.  

Those signing up to the principles include AMC, Apple TV+, BBC, The Casting Directors Guild, 

Channel 4, Channel 5, The Co-operative Personal Management Association, Disney, Equity, 

HBO, Intimacy Directors & Coordinators, ITV Studios, Northern Ireland Screen, Pact, 

Paramount, Personal Managers Association, S4C, Screen Scotland, Sky, TAC, Warner Bros. 

Now that these principles are agreed, it is vital that they are actioned. We also want to see 

similar approach taken across the entire performing arts and entertainment industry.  

 

Other positive action can be found else across the industry. For example, the BFI has created 

a model Dignity at Work policy; and the Film & TV Charity has produced the Whole Picture 

Toolkit for screen industry production companies to develop and adopt good practice in 

maintaining good mental health, including around bullying and harassment policy. We 

strongly encourage producers and engagers across the creative industry to utilise these best 

practice resources and guidelines.  

 

In Wales the unions, through the Wales Union Learning Fund project CULT Cymru and 

additional funding from Creative Wales, are promoting a Wellbeing Facilitator pilot which is 

being rolled out across the independent television sector in both scripted and un-scripted 

productions. https://cult.cymru/en/iechyd-meddwl-a-lles/  

 

A trade unions role is to set the minimum terms and conditions of employment through 

collectively bargained local or national agreements. In pre-pandemic years where work was 

perhaps more plentiful, and engagers were able to offer levels of pay over and above 

minimum rates workers within the sector were able to balance the precarious nature of the 

gig-economy and meet their basic needs. The amount of work on offer, and the ability of 

engagers to pay over minimum levels of pay, in most areas of the sector has exacerbated 

the precarity of work, and bought about the crisis of income. Simply attempting to negotiate 

increases in rates of pay, and improving conditions, will not necessarily fix the underlying issues 

which face the workforce within the sector. There could be huge benefits to the health and 

wealth of the workforce if the tripartite social partnership model was engrained in how the 

sector flourished and improved.  

 

We continue to call on the Welsh Government to continue to use what levers it has through 

the Economic and Cultural contracts with those in receipt of public monies in Wales, in 

conjunction with Creative Wales and ACW, to require that they engage in meaningful and 

realistic conversations and negotiations to improve pay and conditions, where they can, in 

order to protect the sustainability and diversity of the workforce which is so critical to the 

supply chain within the creative sector. 

 

How sustainable is the sector and how will this affect its future? 

It is also important that the future stability of the sector considers sustainability and the sectors 

important role in tackling the climate emergency. With an estimated 8 years’ left to avert 

cataclysmic ecological breakdown, climate mitigation could not be more important to 

protect the future of the talent pipeline and society as a whole. This must be front and centre 

of plans to industry future planning.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 24

https://cult.cymru/en/iechyd-meddwl-a-lles/


 

Page 7 of 10 
 

Building on the work of the Theatre Green Book, and we are Albert, producers and engagers 

across the entire sector need to deliver sustainable productions, buildings and operations. For 

example, production teams should ensure that materials come from reused or recycled 

sources, journeys and deliveries are reduced, and technical systems are run sustainability. The 

industry must action in partnership with the workforce and their trade unions.  

 

Producers and engagers must also make reasonable adjustments to ensure workplaces are 

safe during extreme weather events, which are becoming increasingly common. In the last 

heatwave, some theatres reached interior temperatures of 37 degrees, which is too hot to 

work. To keep temperatures down, producers should conduct a hot weather risk assessment 

and put in place mitigations to bring the temperature down when it reaches 24 degrees 

inside, such as costume changes to keep you cooler and additional breaks. At 27 degrees, 

producers should cut-off for strenuous work, such as performing a number in a musical in full 

costume and 30 degrees should be the absolute limit for all work. Despite the fact that the 

climate emergency has led to and will increasingly lead to a generally warmer climate, there 

is also the likelihood for periods of extremely cold temperatures. In order to prevent the 

unnecessary use of energy for heating or cooling or the eventuality of a workplace being 

unsafe for work, industry must prioritise insulation of all buildings and sets. The long-term 

savings on energy will easily absorb capital costs for insulation. This is especially important 

considering the variability of and spikes to energy costs recently.  

 

Shorter working weeks are hugely beneficial in building sustainability and reducing emissions 

both from industry operations but also in the aggregate personal lives of workers who, when 

given more time off, tend to engage in lower-impact activities compared to those working 

long hours who are associated with higher consumption of environmentally intensive goods 

(even when correcting for income). There are great gains to be made in improving society 

as a whole because the evidence strongly suggests that giving people more time off results 

in significant improvements in quality of life, health outcomes, job satisfaction and happiness, 

and promotes greater gender equality.  

 

Producers and engagers across the entertainment industry could help reduce emissions in 

respect of their finances by improving pension funds and investment portfolios. Research from 

Make My Money Matter, SYSTEMIQ and Global Canopy reveals that for the average pension 

holder, £2 in every £10 is linked to investment in companies and financial institutions with high 

deforestation risks. Further research from Make My Money Matter, WWF and Aviva suggests 

that switching to a sustainable pension is 21x more effective at reducing your carbon footprint 

than giving up flying, going veggie and switching energy provider combined. 

 

Equity also believe that all publicly funded arts bodies should have robust sustainability criteria 

to all project grant applications. Art and culture institutions have an opportunity to lead by 

example and to utilise their public funding in support of a just transition in their workplaces. 

Criteria could include mandatory insulation in flagship theatres, ensuring a living wage for 

their front of house staff, installing heat pumps for a cleaner, greener energy supply and a 

pledge to recycle their sets and costumes. 

 

How equal, diverse and inclusive is the sector? How can this be improved? 

To support the future talent pipeline, urgent action is needed from across the industry to 

improve the diversity of the workforce (including notably around social class). Our industry 

has an ongoing problem of elitism with deep-rooted structural issues that make it harder for 

people from low-income backgrounds and under-represented groups to build and sustain a 

career in the industry. There is currently a relative lack of, and variability of, strategic policy 

from the industry to deliver this, which has led to Equity devising a wealth of best practice 

guidance for industry stakeholders.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 25



 

Page 8 of 10 
 

For example, guidelines were put together by the Equity LGBT+ Committee, in collaboration 

with All About Trans and Spotlight, to increase LGBT+ representation, and in particular the 

trans community, across our screens, stages and audio platforms. This document sets best 

practice for working with performers and creatives who identify as LGBT+. We strongly 

encourage industry stakeholders to apply these casting guidelines with a broad range of 

LGBT+ workers, including those with intersecting protected characteristics, to ensure 

workplace policies and practices reflect the diversity of lived experience across our 

community. The industry should also use Equity’s casting guidelines to develop a casting 

policy that embeds authentic and lived experience as key criteria for the portrayal of LGBT+ 

characters, to address historical exclusion and marginalisation.  

 

Equity has also drafted best practice guidelines in other core areas. This includes, for example, 

guidance on working with artists who are BSL users, on improving the engagement of dance 

companies with Deaf and disabled dancers and to increase the proportion of Black and 

minority ethnic actors in lead roles across mainstream TV broadcasting. 
 

Future workforces are likely to have more caring commitments due to the aging population 

of the UK. The industry must adapt to support carers and the increase in caring responsibilities 

through improving work life balance and offering shorter working weeks. This will also give 

parents and carers more opportunity and longevity in the industry and give better 

opportunity for industry to have a workforce that is demographically representative of 

local/UK populations. 

 

How sufficient are skills and training opportunities? Are there gaps, and how 

should they be filled? 

Action is urgently needed from the industry in relation to educational training and skills. The 

rapid growth of production across the UK film and TV sector in recent years alongside issues 

of workforce retention is putting significant strain on the industry. A recent report by Ofcom 

also found that broadcasters are facing a worrying loss of diverse talent. For the first time, 

more people are leaving the industry than joining, particularly women, while disabled people 

remain significantly underrepresented. This has led to a shortage of skilled crew, which is 

contributing to highly pressurised workplaces and negative working practices and cultures.  

 

The recently published BFI Skills Review estimated that current growth in production for film 

and film and high-end television will require up to 20,770 additional full-time employees by 

2025 needing an overall training investment of over £104 million a year. The BFI has called on 

the industry to invest at least 1% of all production budgets in training. The review includes 

other recommendations, such as more formalised approach to hiring, workplace 

management and professional development; and more comprehensive careers information, 

profiles and pathways. The industry must implement these recommendations in partnership 

with the workforce and their trade unions.  

 

Education and training establishments also have a vital role to play here in providing formal 

vocational education, which centres on models of good practice in employment relations. 

Feedback from our members indicated that education providers across the performing arts 

rarely provide by sufficient support to prepare their students for the world of work, including 

expectations of good health, safety and welfare systems. This has implications for our 

members’ mental health with young workers preparing to enter the industry not sufficiently 

encouraged to reject any form of abusive or discriminatory behaviour.  

 

In the UK there is no single, overarching body informing the curriculum for work and 

employment across vocational training and education institutions covering the creative and 

cultural industries. This is arguably challenging. However, as highlighted by the BFI Skills Review, 

education organisations must engage with the industry to inform tailored approaches to 

Tudalen y pecyn 26



 

Page 9 of 10 
 

training and career development, set standards and frameworks around current good 

practice, and help disseminate information about careers. 

It is important to note here the recent Welsh Government launch of the Creative Skills Action 

Plan and Creative Skills Fund, and also the union’s involvement in the Creative Skills Advisory 

Panel which was put in place. On a matter of transparency Equity, representing the other 

creative unions in Wales, are the current chair of the panel. This Action Plan is critical, but in 

noting its importance we must also raise its limitations in that it only covers the areas of the 

sector under the remit of Creative Wales. There needs to be urgent consideration to 

investigation, appropriate funding and implementation being applied to a similar provision 

for those areas of the sector under the remit of Arts Council Wales. A place also has to be 

found in the cultural strategy for Radio which is covered by neither public bodies.  

What has been the impact of support from public bodies such as the Welsh 

Government and is further support needed? 
The difference in approach on support taken by the devolved nations during the pandemic 

cannot be underestimated. Whilst there are lessons to learn from the delivery of the 

Freelancers Fund through the Cultural Recovery Fund, it cannot be underestimated as to the 

difference the approach made to our members in Wales. For those who fell through the gaps 

in SEISS for whatever reason, to those who were in receipt of SEISS but unable to meet their 

basic needs, this use of support was invaluable. There were limitations on the amount of 

money available at a time of great financial pressure, but the Welsh Government stepped 

up and did what it could.  

 

At present Equity is demanding that the UK Government does more to shield its members and 

the creative workforce from the debilitating impacts of the cost-of-living crisis. It supports the 

TUC call for the National Minimum Wage to be increased to £15 an hour and has long argued 

for a Basic Income Guarantee similar to that being trialled in Ireland. 

https://www.gov.ie/en/press-release/27aed-irelands-basic-income-for-the-arts-pilot-

scheme-launched-by-government/# We have been encouraged by the Welsh 

Government’s interest in this method and the ongoing trial in the care sector as an important 

step forward and useful to the ongoing discussions around this kind of scheme. We support 

the comments and case made by the Future Generations Commissioner at the start of the 

pandemic for a Basic Income Pilot for creatives in particular and would be interested in further 

engagement and discussion about what further expansion could be done.  

https://www.futuregenerations.wales/news/future-generations-commissioner-calls-for-a-

universal-basic-income-pilot-for-creatives/  

 

Equity and other trade unions are also calling on the UK Government to remove the minimum 

income floor from Universal Credit. Our members tell us that this significantly disadvantages 

the fluctuating nature of their income, and the precarious nature of their employment. In 

September 2022 the TUC published a policy proposal around a replacement for Universal 

Credit which seeks to address the failure of the system introduced in 2013 which was designed 

to reduce the number of people in work who were living in poverty. 

https://www.tuc.org.uk/research-analysis/reports/replacement-universal-credit. We have 

recently written to the new Secretary of State for Work and Pensions Chloe Smith MP urging 

her to use her new position to reform Universal credit but the so called ‘mini-budget’ on the 

23rd September 2022 demonstrated a UK Government in crisis and further restrictions on 

claimants rather than improvements.  

https://www.equity.org.uk/media/6416/equity-letter-to-rt-hon-chloe-smith-mp-20092022.pdf  

 

Equity would be more than willing to give further oral evidence to expand on any of the 

above should the opportunity arise during the course of your inquiry.  

 

Simon Curtis 

National Official for Wales 

Tudalen y pecyn 27

https://www.gov.ie/en/press-release/27aed-irelands-basic-income-for-the-arts-pilot-scheme-launched-by-government/
https://www.gov.ie/en/press-release/27aed-irelands-basic-income-for-the-arts-pilot-scheme-launched-by-government/
https://www.futuregenerations.wales/news/future-generations-commissioner-calls-for-a-universal-basic-income-pilot-for-creatives/
https://www.futuregenerations.wales/news/future-generations-commissioner-calls-for-a-universal-basic-income-pilot-for-creatives/
https://www.tuc.org.uk/research-analysis/reports/replacement-universal-credit
https://www.equity.org.uk/media/6416/equity-letter-to-rt-hon-chloe-smith-mp-20092022.pdf


 

Page 10 of 10 
 

30th September 2022 

Tudalen y pecyn 28



CCWLSIR CIWF 16 

Senedd Cymru | Welsh Parliament 

Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, Chwaraeon, a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol | Culture, 

Communications, Welsh Language, Sport, and International Relations Committee  

Gweithlu'r diwydiant creadigol yng Nghymru / Creative industry workforce in Wales 

Ymateb gan Ffilm Cymru  / Response from Ffilm Cymru 

 

 
Response to Senedd Cymru/Welsh Parliament inquiry into the challenges facing the 
creative industry workforce in Wales 

 

 
Introduction:  Ffilm Cymru Wales is a sector development body for film in Wales.  The 
company is a lottery delegate of the Arts Council of Wales and BFI, as well as managing 
independent film production funding for Welsh Government’s Creative Wales.  Work spans 
across the social, cultural, economic and educational value of film, delivering support for 
filmmakers, exhibitors, education practitioners and directly delivering inclusive sector training. 
 
We have focused our response to the committee’s inquiry specifically on the film sub-sector and 
its component parts relevant to Wales – particularly production companies, freelance cast and 
crew, facility and service companies and exhibitors (comprising cinemas, multi-arts venues that 
provide screenings and film festivals).  It is notable that these various component parts also 
frequently cross-pollinate other sub-sectors such as television production, with personnel, 
facilities and venues often working across the sector. 
 
Please see www.filmcymruwales.com  for more information. 
 
 
 

·       What is the current health of the sector’s workforce, including the impacts of the 
pandemic, Brexit and cost of living crisis? Have workers left the sector, and what 
impact has this had? 

 
 
The first nine-twelve months of the pandemic were particularly challenging for the film sector – 
with film production effectively closed whilst safety measures were developed alongside 
proposals to Treasury that resulted in the £500m Film and TV Restart Scheme, which effectively 
addressed defective insurance, allowing the financing of films to resume.  At the consumer end 
of the business, cinemas and arts-centres were required to close, and later to implement 
measures such as covid-passes.  During this time, the availability of Cultural Recovery Funds – 
distributed in Wales via the Arts Council of Wales and Welsh Government’s Creative Wales – 
were absolutely vital in providing income to venues, businesses and (to Wales’ credit) to 
freelancers, on whom this sector depends.   
 
On a smaller scale, Ffilm Cymru additionally provided Emergency Relief Funds to writers, 
directors and producers, and redirected funds to development based activities, helping to 
prepare projects for when production could resume.  We also actively helped to shape sector 
specific safety and fiscal proposals, as part of a UK-wide working group convened by the BFI, 
whilst contributing sector information as Creative Wales shaped its support for cinemas, 
festivals and freelancers. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 29

Eitem 3

http://www.filmcymruwales.com/


 

2 
 

Since the sector re-opened we have seen production activity resume and exceed pre-pandemic 
levels (https://www.bectufreelance.org.uk/2021/12/15/bfi-screen-business-report-details-
the-scale-of-the-uk-production-boom/), fuelled by the increase demand from streamers, 
whose subscription base significantly increased during the pandemic, coupled with a 
concentration of productions that had been delayed.  Both Screen Skills and the BFI Skills 
Reports demonstrate this sector growth, evidencing an estimated need for between 15,130 and 
20,770 additional full-time workers in film and high-end TV across the UK by 2025, which will 
require up to £104million of annual investment in training for the new and existing workforce by 
2025.  The BFI highlighted that that level of investment would necessitate commercial entities, 
including the streamers and studios to coinvest in this skills and training work: 
  
https://www.bfi.org.uk/industry-data-insights/reports/bfi-skills-review-2022 
  
https://www.screenskills.com/media/5559/2022-06-23-labour-market-shortages-and-training-
investment-needs-research.pdf 
 
Film and TV have a tendency to provide relatively highly-paid jobs, which coupled by the high-
rates of production might be taken to indicate a healthy sector.  However, this is arguably off-set 
the undue pressure and threat of burn-out that professionals face when working long-hours, 
across back-to-back projects without the breaks that were previously typical across production.  
This places workers under significant pressure, putting mental health at risk, whilst also 
increasing the probability of workers considering alternative work.   
 
The need to increase sector-capacity, which in turn can support better well-being practices such 
as offering job shares and flexible working hours, is further evidenced in the Film & TV Charities 
Through the Looking Glass Report (https://filmtvcharity.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2022/06/LookingGlassReport_2021_Final.pdf), where a large-scale survey of 
creative industry workers across the UK showed poor mental health and increased evidence of 
suicidal thoughts as compared to the general population.  Improvements to working conditions – 
hours, breaks, flexible working – would also likely be more attractive to a greater diversity of 
new entrants to the sector. 
  
 
In Wales, the Clwstwr supported Screen Survey Wales 2021, which had a focus on the Cardiff 
Capital Region, followed by a pan-Wales survey funded by Creative Wales, was most welcome 
and should be encouraged as a regular addition to available data, in order to track trends and to 
better understand the impact of interventions: 
https://www.academia.edu/78129712/Screen_Survey_Wales_2021 
 
Whilst production has been booming, this does not mean that it’s immune to the cost of living  
crisis, which is likely to see less productions produced with public money in the future, as 
individual projects require more funding to meet inflationary costs of energy, transport, salaries 
and materials.  And, on an individual level, people who are starting out in their careers and have 
yet to establish themselves, may find cost of living an increasing deterrent to their taking on 
work that is project-by-project by its nature.  Consequently, in our development work, we are 
seeing and supporting increased per project costs to support writers, directors, producers and 
associated talent that are earlier on in their careers.   
 

Tudalen y pecyn 30

https://www.bectufreelance.org.uk/2021/12/15/bfi-screen-business-report-details-the-scale-of-the-uk-production-boom/
https://www.bectufreelance.org.uk/2021/12/15/bfi-screen-business-report-details-the-scale-of-the-uk-production-boom/
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.bfi.org.uk%2Findustry-data-insights%2Freports%2Fbfi-skills-review-2022&data=05%7C01%7CRobin.Wilkinson%40senedd.wales%7C516528f96cc94b36986508da6b24faff%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C0%7C0%7C637940104740853896%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=6jsy8nVBxz0jwuVlMK6iCua3o9V26P5MHQI16HUHrXU%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.screenskills.com%2Fmedia%2F5559%2F2022-06-23-labour-market-shortages-and-training-investment-needs-research.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CRobin.Wilkinson%40senedd.wales%7C516528f96cc94b36986508da6b24faff%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C0%7C0%7C637940104740853896%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hOLQ%2Boa5nxmTXMs3xC66j9NVQbV%2BjVKUv1REyfEtQWU%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.screenskills.com%2Fmedia%2F5559%2F2022-06-23-labour-market-shortages-and-training-investment-needs-research.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CRobin.Wilkinson%40senedd.wales%7C516528f96cc94b36986508da6b24faff%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C0%7C0%7C637940104740853896%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hOLQ%2Boa5nxmTXMs3xC66j9NVQbV%2BjVKUv1REyfEtQWU%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ffilmtvcharity.org.uk%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2022%2F06%2FLookingGlassReport_2021_Final.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CRobin.Wilkinson%40senedd.wales%7C516528f96cc94b36986508da6b24faff%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C0%7C0%7C637940104740853896%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ewLFrRu0guK9qdNYmmXJQ9p01VUXkoGOKZKuJRL3x2s%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ffilmtvcharity.org.uk%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2022%2F06%2FLookingGlassReport_2021_Final.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CRobin.Wilkinson%40senedd.wales%7C516528f96cc94b36986508da6b24faff%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C0%7C0%7C637940104740853896%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ewLFrRu0guK9qdNYmmXJQ9p01VUXkoGOKZKuJRL3x2s%3D&reserved=0
https://www.academia.edu/78129712/Screen_Survey_Wales_2021


 

3 
 

Similarly, for the past 3-years we have used funding support from Ymddiried/Welsh 
Broadcasting Trust in order to provide bursaries to new entrant and trainee crew that are living 
in financial hardship – with the aim of diversifying the socio-economic status of people working 
in the creative sector as capacity is built.  This work will be at threat if further funds are not 
sourced.  To that end, we have developed skills and training bids that include measures to off-
set financial hardship for the BFI, Creative Wales and the Shared Prosperity Fund. 
 
 
We welcome the work of NESTA’s Policy and Evidence Centre (PEC), as commissioned by 
DCMS and working in partnership across the devolved nations, into what constitutes ‘Good 
Work’ in the creative industries (see https://pec.ac.uk/news/good-work).  This is expected to be 
published in November.  Emerging themes echo the reports referenced here, but also moves 
towards practical recommendations.  For example, any funder can aim to use their financial and 
contractual position to encourage change.  For Ffilm Cymru this takes the form of requiring 
‘Sustainability Plans’ from productions we support that identify the measures that are right for 
them to advance progress across: environmental, diversity and inclusion, and business 
innovation.  In turn, we are committed to capturing and sharing the good practice that emerges, 
and developing resources that can support further change.  In doing this work within this sector 
however, it is vital to acknowledge that, in the main, these are small and micro-companies that 
are producing content, rapidly scaling up and scaling back their freelance crew, and we need to 
be realistic about what can be achieved without further investment and resource support. 
 
There’s a lot of positive work progressing with these challenges in mind, including for example, 
Cult Cymru’s and the BFI’s piloting of Wellbeing Facilitators, supported by Creative Wales; the 
requirement to adopt and widely share Bullying and Harassment codes of practice, with white 
labels made available; and bespoke training programmes, such as Ffilm Cymru’s Foot in the 
Door training programme ( https://ffilmcymruwales.com/funding-and-training/foot-door) that 
specifically works with Housing Associations, Further Education and grassroots organisations 
within communities, alongside providing support for transport, childcare and other potentially 
cost prohibitive measures, to enable people into the sector that wouldn’t otherwise consider it 
for them.  That work has to be done alongside provision of pastoral support and with on-going 
commitment to cultural change across the sector, from hiring practices to progression 
opportunities and the strengthening of union agreements (such as the Pact/BECTU agreement 
that is currently under negotiation).    This is perhaps a particular point to note in the context of 
Brexit, where there is potential for working directives to be watered down if we do not 
collectively work to avoid that. 
 
  

·       How financially stable is the sector and how suitable are pay and working 
conditions? 

 
As reflected in the Arts Council of Wales’ (ACW) evidence to this committee for its Cost of 

Living inquiry, we are similarly seeing significant financial challenge faced by exhibition 
venues – those being cinemas and multi-arts venues, including those who screen films.  
ACW noted that more than 50% were indicating significant financial pressures – and that 
would be consistent with the feedback we receive from venues that we co-fund across 
Wales where they are facing the combined challenge of ticket sales that have not fully 

Tudalen y pecyn 31

https://pec.ac.uk/news/good-work
https://ffilmcymruwales.com/funding-and-training/foot-door


 

4 
 

recovered post covid, with the rising costs of living, which both increase operational 
running costs and further the downward pressure on ticket sales. 

 
Two recent developments illustrate this point with the World’s second largest cinema-chain, 

CineWorld, going into administration1; and Scotland’s Centre for Moving Image2 went 
into administrating, with the knock-on impact of Edinburgh International Film Festival, 
Edinburgh’s FilmHouse  and Aberdeen’s Belmon cinema all ceasing trading with 
immediate effect, including the loss of 102 jobs. Overall, ‘Business Insolvency’ 
publication notes that box-office takings are down 32% from last year, compared to 
around a third in 2019.   

 
There is a real and present danger that these latest developments represent the canary in 

the coalmine for exhibition.  After the support exhibitors received from the Cultural 
Recovery Funds, we would argue there is need for further emergency funds for 
exhibitors, noting that if they collapse they’ll take the route to market for independent 
films with them.  These venues showed tremendous agility in the face of covid, adapting 
how they worked – sometimes going on-line, albeit swapping pounds for digital dimes; 
and where they could, continuing to provide valued offers to their communities, such as 
offering food services.  Vitally, these cinemas provide cultural enrichment on the high-
street and within communities - providing a breadth of storytelling that helps us as a 
society to better understand ourselves. 

 
 

From a production point of view, in addition to comments above where in particular we’d like 
to see strengthening of union agreements to improve working hours and flexibility of 
working conditions, we’d note the BFI’s recently commissioned independent Economic 
Review of UK Independent film: 
https://www.bfi.org.uk/industry-data-insights/reports/economic-review-uk-independent-
film 

 
In particular, this report illustrates the “considerable threat…. That this culturally important 

part of the sector” is facing when taking into consideration stagnating revenue with digital 
media not fully replacing falling revenue from sources such as cinema; significant 
inflation of costs and increased uncertainty in the sector as it emerges from the 
pandemic, creating an environment that is in turn less attractive to investors. 

 
In this context, Alma Economics draws attention in its recommendations to the importance of 

public funding incubating talent that offers a diversity of voice; and supporting adaptation 
of business models across the sector.  There is also a call for greater demands to be 
made of the streamers – which might range from increased local sector support, to direct 
investment in training (a point also made in the BFI’s Skills Review, as above). 

 
1 https://business-insolvency-helpline.co.uk/cineworld-bankruptcy/  Cineworld has 30,000 employees 
and 9,500 screens across 7 countries, including Picturehouse in the UK, which recently released Ffilm 
Cymru,BFI and S4C co-financed feature, Gwledd/The Feast 
2 https://www.screendaily.com/news/edinburgh-international-film-festival-to-cease-trading-as-parent-
charity-enters-administration/5175146.article  

Tudalen y pecyn 32

https://www.bfi.org.uk/industry-data-insights/reports/economic-review-uk-independent-film
https://www.bfi.org.uk/industry-data-insights/reports/economic-review-uk-independent-film
https://business-insolvency-helpline.co.uk/cineworld-bankruptcy/
https://www.screendaily.com/news/edinburgh-international-film-festival-to-cease-trading-as-parent-charity-enters-administration/5175146.article
https://www.screendaily.com/news/edinburgh-international-film-festival-to-cease-trading-as-parent-charity-enters-administration/5175146.article


 

5 
 

 
 
 

  
·       How equal, diverse and inclusive is the sector? How can this be improved? 
 
According to NESTA’s Policy and Evidence Centre3, the UK’s Creative Industries would 

need to employ 250,000 more working-class people to be as socially economically 
diverse as the rest of the economy.  This deficit is the equivalent to the size of the 
creative workforce in Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland combined.   

 
This is a reflection of structural and cultural challenges for a sector that is largely comprised 

of micro and small enterprises and freelancers, who tend to recruit through known 
networks, at pace and without consideration of socio-economic barriers – such as 
access to transport, childcare, and work-related costs. 

 
Inclusion and wellbeing is actively embedded in all of Ffilm Cymru Wales’ activity and we 

have long-led on the benefits of this approach.  
 
Ffilm Cymru Wales ‘Film For Everyone’ plan (https://ffilmcymruwales.com/film-everyone, 

which includes targets reflective of our society,  is an example of how it is feasible to 
embed inclusive practice in terms of using levers for best practice, combined with 
partnership with grassroots organisations within communities.. For example, production 
funding can be coupled with contractual terms that encourage those we work with to 
make change and we are actively looking as to how we can do that throughout the 
screen eco system. This begins with influencing policy around sustainability and runs 
right through to our work on our award winning training programme ‘ Foot in the Door’ 
working with communities across Wales.  

 
One of the most significant challenges of the screen sector in terms of achieving better 

diversity and inclusion, is the manner in which work is organised and structured. Work 
across screen is largely project based, short term and high risk( Eikhof, 2018). The 
associated risks that accompany short term, precarious work structures are often filtered 
through the chain of productions. In practice, this means that staff on short term 
contracts with limited autonomy and a ‘task and finish’ role to undertake against the 
clock, does not in any way lend itself to these structures embedding ‘diversity and 
inclusion in practice’. 

 
There has been some progress over the last five years that seeks to address the limitations 

of the way that productions are structured from a support and wellbeing perspective, that 
build temporary human resource support systems around short-term productions 
including:  

 
• Film & TV Charity metal health helpline  

 
3 Social Mobility in the Creative Economy.  Rebuilding and Levelling Up? https://pec.ac.uk/research-
reports/social-mobility-in-the-creative-economy-rebuilding-and-levelling-up 9th September 2021 

Tudalen y pecyn 33

https://ffilmcymruwales.com/film-everyone
https://pec.ac.uk/research-reports/social-mobility-in-the-creative-economy-rebuilding-and-levelling-up
https://pec.ac.uk/research-reports/social-mobility-in-the-creative-economy-rebuilding-and-levelling-up


 

6 
 

• BFI Bullying and Harassment policies  
• Wellbeing Facilitators  
• Access co-ordinators  
• Intimacy co-ordinators  
• BFI Diversity Standards  
• Call it App! 

 
What is now required is for the screen sector in Wales to work with funders and industry bodies 
to understand and develop sustainable embedded solutions to how productions practically 
address and embed wellbeing and inclusion within a high-risk environment. This change and 
any subsequent activity must be led by industry to affect change.  

 
 

·       How sufficient are skills and training opportunities? Are there gaps, and how 
should they be filled? 

 
There are structural and cultural challenges – such as how the sector recruits, trains and 
advances its workforce. Skills and training for screen in Wales can be perceived as a crowded 
marketplace. In an environment where sourcing below the line crew is a challenge with issues of 
supply and demand. Feedback from production anecdotally is that this is confusing when skills 
and training organisations have competing priorities. Ffilm Cymru Wales are now developing 
systems through their Production funding to simplify this with and for productions we work with, 
including:  
 

• Transparently mapping what each Sector skills and training organisation does and offers 
across Skills and training in Wales  

• What ‘level’ each intervention is at and what they will gain from engagement  
• How engaging with organisations will support productions needs 

 
There is an urgent need to simplify this for productions and individuals looking to work in the 
sector; Ffilm Cymru Wales are developing a first of its kind ‘signposting’ in terms of the screen 
sector toolkit for Wales, that will be published November 2022. It has the aim of explaining and 
de-mystifying the sector for new-entrants and supports understanding of what each organisation 
does and offers. There will also be ‘place-based’ versions of this that will ensure that localised 
and regionalised offers are considered across Wales.  
 
Research from both Wales and UK wide has identified that succession planning and mid-senior 
level talent development and training needs to be developed to offer sector sustainability and 
we will be looking to develop training at this level that meets production needs.  
 
Across all of this work, increased collaboration would be beneficial and welcome.  Many of the 
screen industry skills and training bodies are themselves micro or small companies that work 
from project-to-project, as noted in the McAvoy, Skills Survey.  By joining together for 
collaborative and joined up bids that are clearly signposted there are opportunities to simplify 
and increase the efficacy of training, for the benefit of all.  This is the approach that Ffilm Cymru 
took in its successful bid to UK Government’s Community Renewal Fund through Newport 
Council, working in partnership with Sgil Cymru, Screen Alliance Wales, Cult Cymru, Coleg 
Gwent, housing associations and grassroots community organisastions. There’s potential to 

Tudalen y pecyn 34



 

7 
 

take a similar model with greater scale with the Shared Prosperity and up to 9-years of skills 
cluster lottery funding, as distributed by the BFI.   
 
 
  

·       What has been the impact of support from public bodies such as the Welsh 
Government, and is further support needed? 

 
Please refer to Ffilm Cymru’s previous evidence submitted to the committee’s inquiry into the 
impact of Covid and support provided, where amongst other items, we noted the vital 
importance of Welsh Government’s provision of Cultural Recovery Funding, including for 
freelancers and venues. 
 
As above, financial support is now needed to further the following: 
 

- Emergency relief for exhibition venues (cinemas and multi-arts) during the Cost of Living 
crisis and to support adaptive business practice; 
 

- The combined use of contractual levers (Cultural/Economic Contract) and funding to 
enable support and provision of resources to support changes in working practice – in 
line with emerging Policy and Evidence findings and as further reviewed and adopted 
within Wales; 
 

- Scaled-up and joined up skills and training provision that puts diversity and inclusion at 
it’s heart.  This should take into consideration the value of transferable skills to support 
resilience and the importance of leadership skills – for advancing progressive 
businesses that keep pace with the market, to recognising and embedding behavioural 
change that substantially improves wellbeing in the workplace. 
 

-  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



 

    

 

 

16 Tachwedd 2022 

 

Annwyl Brif Weinidog  

Craffu ar oblygiadau ariannol Biliau 

Rwy'n ysgrifennu atoch o ystyried eich cyfrifoldeb personol dros Raglen 
Deddfwriaethol Llywodraeth Cymru. 

Mae'r Pwyllgor Cyllid yn pryderu'n fawr fod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi symud i 
ffwrdd o'r arfer yn y Bumed Senedd o ddarparu ymateb ysgrifenedig i 
adroddiadau Cyfnod 1 pwyllgorau cyn i ddadl Cyfnod 1 gael ei chynnal a chyn ei 
bod yn ofynnol i'r Senedd gytuno ar Benderfyniad Ariannol.  

Rôl y Pwyllgor Cyllid yw ystyried goblygiadau ariannol Biliau ac mae ein 
hadroddiadau yn aml yn dod i'r casgliad ein bod yn fodlon â'r wybodaeth 
ariannol sydd wedi’i chynnwys ochr yn ochr â Biliau'r Llywodraeth, yn amodol ar 
ymrwymiad gan y Gweinidog i ddarparu gwybodaeth ariannol bellach yr ydym 
yn gofyn amdani. Gan fod y cynnig i gytuno ar Benderfyniad Ariannol fel arfer yn 
digwydd yn syth ar ôl i’r cynnig Cyfnod 1 gael ei dderbyn, mae penderfyniad 
Llywodraeth Cymru i wrthod darparu ymateb ffurfiol i’n hargymhellion yn golygu 
bod gofyn i’r Senedd gytuno i ymrwymo adnoddau cyn bod barn y Gweinidog yn 
hysbys. Rydym o'r farn bod hyn yn annerbyniol ac mae'n tanseilio'r broses graffu. 

Mae'r Pwyllgor wedi ystyried goblygiadau ariannol yr holl Filiau sydd wedi'u 
cyflwyno yn ystod y Senedd hon, ac eithrio'r Bil cydgrynhoi sy'n ddarostyngedig i 
wahanol weithdrefnau. Yn ein gwaith craffu ar y Bil cyntaf a gyflwynwyd, y Bil 
Addysg Drydyddol ac Ymchwil (Cymru), gwnaethom nodi ein disgwyliadau ar 
gyfer y Senedd hon y dylai Asesiadau Effaith Rheoleiddiol gynnwys yr 
amcangyfrif gorau posibl o gostau a buddion i’n galluogi i graffu’n llawn ar 
oblygiadau ariannol cyffredinol Bil. Roedd hyn yn adeiladu ar faterion a nodwyd 
yn Adroddiad Gwaddol Pwyllgor Cyllid y Bumed Senedd sy’n nodi disgwyliadau 
pellach o ran cyflwyno gwybodaeth ariannol y dylai pob Bil gadw ati. 

Mark Drakeford AS  
Y Prif Weinidog 

Tudalen y pecyn 36

Eitem 4.1

https://senedd.cymru/media/24ml0200/cr-ld14997-w.pdf
https://senedd.cymru/media/giqmxyvx/cr-ld14321-w.pdf


 

 

Yn ddiweddar, cawsom ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i’n hargymhellion ar Fil 
Diogelu'r Amgylchedd (Cynhyrchion Plastig Untro) (Cymru). Roedd y Pwyllgor yn 
siomedig bod y Gweinidog wedi "cytuno mewn egwyddor" mewn llawer o 
achosion i ddarparu’r wybodaeth ariannol bellach y gofynnwyd amdani. Fodd 
bynnag, mae'r rhaglith yn awgrymu bod swyddogion y Gweinidog yn asesu 
dichonoldeb diweddaru'r gost wreiddiol ac, os ydyn nhw'n gallu, "bydd unrhyw 
waith yn cymryd o leiaf chwe mis i'w gwblhau". Hyd yn oed os bydd y costau'n 
cael eu diweddaru, mae'n debygol y bydd y Bil wedi cwblhau ei daith 
ddeddfwriaethol drwy'r Senedd erbyn i'r wybodaeth fod ar gael.  

Yn syml, nid yw hyn yn ddigon da. Nid yw’n ddefnyddiol cael y wybodaeth hon ar 
ôl i’r Senedd eisoes gytuno ar y Penderfyniad Ariannol. Mae hefyd yn tanseilio 
ymdrechion y Pwyllgor sydd, yn ei dro, yn cynyddu'r risg yn sylweddol y bydd y 
Senedd yn pasio deddfau gwael, gyda chanlyniadau ariannol ansicr a allai roi 
pwysau sylweddol ar gyllidebau sydd eisoes dan bwysau. 

Gofynnwn felly i Weinidogion ddychwelyd at yr arfer blaenorol a darparu ymateb 
ysgrifenedig i argymhellion y Pwyllgor Cyllid cyn dadl Cyfnod 1 ac ystyried 
Penderfyniad Ariannol fel mater o egwyddor. Bydd hyn yn sicrhau bod y Senedd 
yn gallu gwneud penderfyniad gwybodus mewn perthynas ag ymrwymo 
adnoddau. 

Byddwn yn ddiolchgar pe gallech ddosbarthu'r llythyr hwn i'ch cydweithwyr yn y 
cabinet. Rwyf hefyd yn anfon copi at y Pwyllgor Busnes a Chadeiryddion y 
pwyllgorau polisi. 

Yn gywir 

 

  

Peredur Owen Griffiths AS 
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

Tudalen y pecyn 37

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/documents/s130882/FIN6-22-22%20PTN%203%20-%20Bil%20Diogelur%20Amgylchedd%20Cynhyrchion%20Plastig%20Untro%20Cymru%20Ymateb%20Llywodraet.pdf


 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 38



 

 

 

 

 

21 Tachwedd 2022 

Annwyl Mark, 

Rwyf yn ysgrifennu yn dilyn adroddiad y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r 
Cyfansoddiad ar Gytundebau Rhyngwladol a ystyriwyd ar 26 Medi 2022. Bu'r adroddiad 
yn trafod, ymhlith cytundebau rhyngwladol eraill, yr Ail Brotocol Ychwanegol i Gonfensiwn 
Cyngor Ewrop ar Seiberdroseddu ac yn tynnu sylw at eich rôl mewn perthynas â 
“diogelwch gwladol gan gynnwys gwrthderfysgaeth a seiberddiogelwch”.  

Mae seiberddiogelwch yn faes sy'n datblygu'n gyflym, gyda llawer o gyfleoedd. Rwy'n 
edrych ymlaen at ddilyn datblygiad Canolfan Seiberddiogelwch newydd De Cymru. Bydd 
sector seiberddiogelwch cryf yn dod â swyddi o ansawdd uchel ac yn cefnogi llu o 
fusnesau arloesol.  

Yn ogystal â bod yn ddiwydiant sy’n llawn bwrlwm sy'n dod i'r amlwg yn ei rhinwedd ei 
hun, mae seiberddiogelwch wrth gwrs hefyd yn gwbl hanfodol ar gyfer diogelu ein 
busnesau a chyrff y sector cyhoeddus rhag niwed posibl. Yn hynny o beth, mae'n 
hanfodol ein bod yn sicrhau bod gan Gymru weithlu seiberddiogelwch medrus iawn. 

Yn dilyn ymlaen o adroddiad y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad, 
byddwn yn awyddus i glywed eich barn am yr Ail Brotocol Ychwanegol i Gonfensiwn 
Cyngor Ewrop ar Seiberdroseddu.  

Hoffwn hefyd gael rhagor o fanylion am y ffordd y mae Llywodraeth Cymru'n cefnogi ac 
yn hybu seiberddiogelwch a'r diwydiant yn ehangach. A fyddech cystal â rhoi gwybod i 
mi: 

Pwyllgor yr Economi,  
Masnach a Materion Gwledig 
— 
Economy, Trade and  
Rural Affairs Committee  

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddEconomi@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddEconomi 

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddEconomy@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddEconomy  
0300 200 6565 

Mark Drakeford AS 
Prif Weinidog 

Tudalen y pecyn 39

Eitem 4.2

https://senedd.cymru/media/wvsnxbjs/cr-ld15379-w.pdf
https://www.coe.int/en/web/cybercrime/-/second-additional-protocol-to-the-cybercrime-convention-adopted-by-the-committee-of-ministers-of-the-council-of-europe
https://www.coe.int/en/web/cybercrime/-/second-additional-protocol-to-the-cybercrime-convention-adopted-by-the-committee-of-ministers-of-the-council-of-europe
https://llyw.cymru/canolfan-arloesi-newydd-i-gefnogi-cymru-i-ddod-yn-arweinydd-byd-eang-ym-maes-seiberddiogelwch


 

 

• Yn ogystal â'r gefnogaeth ariannol i'r Ganolfan, pa waith y mae Llywodraeth 
Cymru wedi'i wneud i ddatblygu sgiliau ein gweithlu yn ymwneud â risg real, 
llywodraethu a sgiliau seiberddiogelwch polisi? 

• A oes gan Lywodraeth Cymru unrhyw gynlluniau i helpu i roi hwb i gyflogadwyedd 
pobl yn y diwydiant seiberddiogelwch ar ôl cymhwyso? 

• Ar hyn o bryd, dynion sy’n gweithio yn y sector seiberddiogelwch yn bennaf. A 
fydd Llywodraeth Cymru'n cymryd unrhyw gamau i annog mwy o fenywod i 
weithio yn y sector? 

Nodaf hefyd fod Llywodraeth y DU wedi gorchymyn Nexperia BV i werthu 86 y cant o'i 
gyfran yn Nexperia Newport Limited, y gwneuthurwr lled-ddargludyddion yng 
Nghasnewydd a enwyd yn flaenorol yn Wafer Fab. Cyfeiriodd y gorchymyn at ddau 
reswm dros y gwerthiant gorfodol: 

• Technoleg a gwybodaeth ymarferol a allai ddeillio o ailgyflwyno gweithgareddau 
lled-ddargludyddion cyfansawdd posibl ar safle Casnewydd, a'r potensial i'r 
gweithgareddau hynny danseilio galluoedd y DU; a  

• Gallai lleoliad y safle hwyluso mynediad at arbenigedd technolegol a gwybodaeth 
ymarferol yng Nghlwstwr De Cymru ("y Clwstwr"), a gall y cysylltiadau rhwng y 
safle a'r Clwstwr atal y Clwstwr rhag bod yn rhan o brosiectau sy'n berthnasol i 
ddiogelwch cenedlaethol yn y dyfodol. 

Nodaf o'r sylw yn y newyddion y dywedodd Llywodraeth Cymru fod cyhoeddiad 
Llywodraeth y DU wedi dod ag eglurder sydd i’w groesawu, ac mai ei blaenoriaeth yw 
diogelu swyddi. Gan y byddwch chi nawr wedi cael amser i ystyried ffeithiau'r mater, 
allech chi nodi unrhyw oblygiadau fel rydych chi’n eu gweld nhw o'r gwerthiant hwn ac 
unrhyw gamau y bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn eu cymryd o ganlyniad i hynny? 

Rwy’n anfon copi o’r llythyr hwn at Huw Irranca-Davies AS, Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad a Delyth Jewell AS, Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, Chwaraeon a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol. 

Cofion cynnes, 

 

Paul Davies AS 
Tudalen y pecyn 40

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1118369/NWF_Final_Order_Public_Notice_16112022.pdf
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-63656816


 

 

Cadeirydd: Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig  
 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg | We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 41



 

 

 

 

23 Tachwedd 2022 

Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2023-24 

 

Annwyl gyfeillion, 

Trafododd y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg sut y bydd yn mynd ati i graffu ar gyllideb ddrafft 

Llywodraeth Cymru 2023-24 yn ddiweddar. 

Rydym wedi ymrwymo yn ein strategaeth ar gyfer y Chweched Senedd i geisio cyfleoedd i weithio 

gyda phwyllgorau eraill y Senedd mewn meysydd o ddiddordeb a rennir a lle y bydd hyn yn gwella’r 

gwaith craffu. Gan hynny, rydym wedi gofyn i swyddogion sy’n cefnogi’r Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac 

Addysg i rannu â phwyllgorau eraill y Senedd wybodaeth briffio ac unrhyw dystiolaeth ysgrifenedig 

Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc  
ac Addysg 

— 

Children, Young People  
and Education Committee 

Senedd Cymru 

Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 
SeneddPlant@senedd.cymru 

senedd.cymru/SeneddPlant 

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddChildren@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddChildren 

0300 200 6565 Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd, a Seilwaith 

Llyr Gruffydd AS 

 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, Chwaraeon, 

a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol 

Delyth Jewell AS 

 

Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach, a Materion Gwledig 

Paul Davies AS 

 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb a Chyfiawnder Cymdeithasol 

Jenny Rathbone AS 

 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid 

Peredur Owen Griffiths AS 

 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 

Russell George AS 

 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai 

John Griffiths AS 

Tudalen y pecyn 42

Eitem 4.3

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/documents/s120775/Strategaeth%20y%20Chweched%20Senedd%20manwl.pdf


 

 

berthnasol a gawn er mwyn cefnogi gwaith craffu cyfannol, cydgysylltiedig ar y Gyllideb Ddrafft ar 

draws y Senedd. 

Rydym hefyd wedi gofyn i swyddogion fod yn effro i’r posibilrwydd y bydd ein barn ni yn debyg i 

eiddo pwyllgor arall o ran materion sy’n pontio cylchoedd gwaith pwyllgorau, a hynny gyda’r bwriad 

o gynnig argymhellion ar y cyd lle bo’n briodol. Wrth graffu ar y Gyllideb Ddrafft ar gyfer 2022-23, 

gwnaethom ni a Phwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig argymhelliad ar y cyd yn 

ymwneud â thryloywder un ffrwd gyllido benodol - sef mater pwysig o egwyddor i’r ddau bwyllgor. 

Credaf fod yr argymhelliad ar y cyd yn ychwanegu pwysau at ein safbwyntiau cyffredin. 

Byddwn yn dra diolchgar am eich cefnogaeth chithau ar y materion uchod. 

Gwnaethom hefyd gytuno y bydd ein gwaith craffu ar y Gyllideb Ddrafft yn ystyried y materion 

trawsbynciol a ganlyn: 

▪ 'llinell sylfaen ddiwygiedig' Llywodraeth Cymru, fel y’i gelwir: pa mor glir a chywir ydyw o 

ran cyflwyno newidiadau mewn gwariant o un flwyddyn i'r llall. 

▪ sut mae'r Gyllideb Ddrafft yn effeithio ar wahanol grwpiau o bobl, ac i ba raddau y mae'r 

effeithiau hyn yn cael eu hystyried yn Asesiad Effaith Integredig Strategol (SIIA) 

Llywodraeth Cymru. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi rhoi sicrwydd i ni fod yr SIIA yn nodi’r 

dystiolaeth gyd-destunol sy’n cefnogi ei phenderfyniadau gwariant. Fodd bynnag, nid 

ydym yn credu bod yr SIIA a gyhoeddwyd ochr yn ochr â’r Gyllideb Ddrafft ar gyfer 2022-

23 wedi dangos yn glir ei fod yn cydymffurfio â’i ddyletswyddau o dan Fesur Hawliau Plant 

a Phobl Ifanc (Cymru) 2011. Credwn y dylai Asesiad o’r Effaith ar Hawliau Plant (CRIA) ar 

gyfer y Gyllideb Ddrafft yn ei chrynswth gael ei gynnal a’i gyhoeddi fel dogfen ar wahân. 

Gall y materion hyn, neu faterion tebyg iawn, fod yn berthnasol i ystyriaeth eich Pwyllgor o’r Gyllideb 

Ddrafft ar gyfer 2023-24. Os felly, byddwn yn croesawu unrhyw gyfleoedd ar gyfer craffu 

cydgysylltiedig. Rwyf wedi gofyn i swyddogion sy’n cefnogi’r Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg fynd 

ar drywydd unrhyw gyfleoedd o’r fath, yn dibynnu ar eich barn chi a barn aelodau eraill eich 

pwyllgorau. 

Yn gywir, 

 

Jayne Bryant AS 

Cadeirydd 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 43



 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 44



Ymddiheuriadau am yr oedi wrth ymateb i’r cwestiynau. 

 Roedd yn dda iawn gennym gyflwyno sylwadau i’r pwyllgor ar faterion tra phwysig yn ymwneud a 

dyfodol Addysg Gymraeg ac yn edrych mlaen i’r adroddiad maes o law. 

 O ran y cwestiynau penodol y’ch chi wedi holi: 

 • Rhan o’r broses o ddatblygu darpariaeth yn y sector cyfrwng Saesneg yw symud ysgolion ar 

hyd y continwwm iaith (h.y. o gyfrwng Saesneg i ddwyieithog, neu ddwyieithog i gyfrwng Cymraeg).  

Pa dystiolaeth sydd i ddangos bod awdurdodau lleol wedi mynd i’r afael â hyn yn ddigonol yn eu 

Cynlluniau Strategol, ac os na, beth sy’n gorfod newid? 

 Prin iawn yw’r dystiolaeth hyd y gwelwn ni yn gyffredinol. Mae o leiaf un awdurdod wedi dechrau ar 

y broses yn benodol gydag ysgolion Cynradd (Sir Gar) ond mae hynny mewn cyd-destunau ieithyddol 

penodol ble mae canran sylweddol o’r rhieni (a’r gymuned ehangach yn siarad Cymraeg). Ein 

safbwynt ni fel Coleg yw fod angen ystyried sgiliau iaith y gweithlu mewn ysgolion cyfrwng Saesneg 

yn benodol iawn a rhoi pob cefnogaeth i athrawon yn y sector Saesneg i ddatblygu eu sgiliau yn y 

Gymraeg. Mae hyn yn wir hefyd ar gyfer y rheiny sy’n hyfforddi i ddysgu mewn ysgolion cyfrwng 

Saesneg. Mae symud Ysgol ar hyd y continwwm iaith yn llawer mwy ymarferol os yw’r staff yn 

medru’r ddwy iaith yn hyderus i ddechrau. 

 • Mae nifer o fudiadau wedi cyfeirio at yr angen i feithrin capasiti arbenigwyr Anghenion 

Dysgu Ychwanegol cyfrwng Cymraeg, gyda’r Comisiynydd Plant yn nodi bod diffyg mynediad at 

gymorth cyfrwng Cymraeg yn fater systemig ledled Cymru. Allwch chi ymhelaethu ychydig ar yr 

heriau penodol o ran cynyddu nifer y staff cyfrwng Cymraeg sydd ag arbenigeddau pwnc priodol, gan 

gynnwys Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol. 

 Mae yna her cyffredinol o ran sicrhau digon o staff addysgu sy’n medru’r Gymraeg, ac mae’r her 

hynny yn cael ei amlygu wrth ddelio gydag arbenigeddau penodol e.e. arbenigwyr ADY neu 

athrawon Gwyddoniaeth. Ein barn ni fel y Coleg yw fod angen ehangu’n sylweddol y nifer o 

athrawon sy’n cael eu hyfforddi drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg, a datblygu mentrau penodol ychwanegol i 

gefnogi twf y proffesiwn mewn meysydd ble mae’r niferoedd yn arbennig o brin. 

 Ar fater mwy eang, mae’r broses o ail-achredu Canolfannau Hyfforddi Athrawon ar fin cychwyn, a 

buaswn yn awgrymu fod hyn yn gyfle da iawn i osod fframwaith mwy cadarn o ran hyfforddiant 

Cyfrwng Cymraeg; ac hyfforddiant i’r sawl sydd ar hyn o bryd yn dymuno mynd i weithio yn y sector 

cyfrwng Saesneg ble mae dybryd angen cefnogi a gwella eu sgiliau iaith yn sylweddol. 

 Cofion atat 

 Dafydd 

 _______________ 

Dr Dafydd Trystan 

Cofrestrydd / Registrar 

Coleg Cymraeg Cenedlaethol 

Tudalen y pecyn 45

Eitem 4.4



 
 

Yn Gosod y Llwyfan I’r Celfyddydau Perfformio yng Nghymru 
 

Setting the Stage for the Performing Arts in Wales 
 
 

Blwch S.B. 242/P.O. Box 242, Aberystwyth, Ceredigion  SY23 9AX 

T  01970 822222  E  post@creucymru.com   W  creucymru.com 
Cwmni Cyfyngedig trwy warant / Company Limited by Guarantee:  05125340 
Rhif Cofrestru TAW / VAT Registration No. 939 2518 95 
Rhif Elusen Gofrestredig / Registered Charity No. 1135304 

24th November 2022 
 
Annwyl / Dear Delyth 
 
I hope this letter finds you well. 
 
I’m writing to you regarding the recent news about St David’s Hall in Cardiff and a possible take over 
by a commercial organisation.  
 
St David’s Hall is a long-standing member of Creu Cymru and a member of hynt, the national access 
scheme for theatres and arts centres in Wales and therefore I’m writing to you to express my 
concerns about the potential future operations.  
 
Cardiff Council have announced in the press this week that they are taking to Cabinet in December a 
proposal to hand St David’s Hall, The National Concert Hall of Wales over to Live Nation / AMG to 
become the newest Academy O2 venue. 
 
St David’s Hall were a vital venue in the creation and launch of hynt in 2015, with the Wales wide 
scheme based on the approach and learning at St David’s Hall, the New Theatre and Wales 
Millennium Centre. Hynt is an Arts Council of Wales initiative managed by Creu Cymru in partnership 
with Diverse Cymru.  
 
Hynt’s strength is in offering an equitable offer across Wales. Using the social model of disability, 
and an application process designed through peer led consultation, hynt removes barriers and takes 
decision making away from box office and customer facing staff. 
 
The relationship with St David’s Hall, as a founding venue member of hynt, is very important to hynt. 
The staff in all departments have engaged well with the scheme and we have a positive relationship 
with management and box office, which enables us to share learning and support the venue and its 
visitors.  
 
Hynt users could be faced with the possibility of not being able to use their hynt card or again prove 
their disability status once it is in new ownership.  
 
St David’s Hall plays a pivotal role as the National Concert Hall for Wales presenting world class 
orchestras, ballets, opera and choruses, not to mention the amount of young people and community 
members that benefit from performing on the stage themselves. Community and amateur 
organisations will have no way of showcasing their work on a large scale because they simply won’t 
be able to afford the hire fees and on costs. If community groups can use the Hall, audience 
members for this work could be faced with large booking fees and unreasonable prices for 
secondary spend items.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 46

Eitem 4.5

mailto:post@creucymru.com


 
 

Yn Gosod y Llwyfan I’r Celfyddydau Perfformio yng Nghymru 
 

Setting the Stage for the Performing Arts in Wales 
 
 

Blwch S.B. 242/P.O. Box 242, Aberystwyth, Ceredigion  SY23 9AX 

T  01970 822222  E  post@creucymru.com   W  creucymru.com 
Cwmni Cyfyngedig trwy warant / Company Limited by Guarantee:  05125340 
Rhif Cofrestru TAW / VAT Registration No. 939 2518 95 
Rhif Elusen Gofrestredig / Registered Charity No. 1135304 

Although the change to an Academy venue will require the confirmed removal of all stalls seating 
and a flattening of the floor to increase the capacity in the auditorium to 2500, Cardiff Council state 
there will still be some provision for Classical Music and community participation and that this 
significant change will in no way endanger the acoustics of one of the top ten acoustic concert halls 
in the world, which attracts attenders from every postcode in Wales and the most attenders from S 
W England of any Cardiff venue. 
 
The Council have not given any indication of how the future provision of classical music will be 
secured in Cardiff nor identified a budget for this. This is highly regrettable given St David’s Hall is 
the only venue in Wales suitable for performances by a full symphony orchestra. 
 
There is also the brilliant work of Arts Active to consider. This is unlikely to be a priority for a 
commercial operator, but I would hope that the Council explore other ways to continue that vital 
educational and community work.  
 
I understand that Cardiff Council are having to make difficult decisions about what they can and 
can’t fund but they are in danger of giving away the profitable side of St David’s Hall to a commercial 
operator which still paying for time for the community / classical programme. 
 
The impact of audiences, communities, and staff need to be part of any decision making. Protecting 
jobs, skills, opportunities, education, and access must not come at the expense of a cost cutting 
exercise.  
 
Of significant concern is the speed at which this momentous decision regarding Cardiff’s and indeed 
Wales’ cultural offer, with minimal consultation and without robust investigation into alternative 
opportunities of securing funding for a suitable future of the National Concert Hall of Wales. 
 
I believe that the Culture, Communications, Welsh Language, Sport and International Relations 
Committee should be looking at the speed at which this momentous decision regarding Cardiff’s and 
indeed Wales’ cultural offer, with minimal consultation and without robust investigation into 
alternative opportunities of securing funding for a suitable future of the National Concert Hall of 
Wales. 
 
Diolch am eich amser.  
Yn gywir / Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 
Louise Miles-Payne  
Cyfarwyddwr, Creu Cymru  
Director, Creu Cymru
 

Tudalen y pecyn 47

mailto:post@creucymru.com


Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 48

Eitem 7 Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 53

Eitem 8Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 61

Eitem 9Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Yr heriau sy’n wynebu gweithlu’r diwydiant creadigol yng Nghymru: Sesiwn dystiolaeth gydag undebau llafur a chynrychiolwyr gweithwyr
	Ymateb i'r ymgynghoriad gan Undeb y Cerddorion (Saesneg yn unig)
	Ymateb i'r ymgynghoriad gan Equity (Saesneg yn unig)

	3 Yr heriau sy’n wynebu gweithlu’r diwydiant creadigol yng Nghymru: Sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda sefydliadau’r diwydiannau sgrin
	4.1 Llythyr oddi wrth Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid at y Prif Weinidog ynghylch goblygiadau ariannol Biliau
	4.2 Llythyr oddi wrth Gadeirydd Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig at y Prif Weinidog ynghylch yr Ail Brotocol Ychwanegol i Gonfensiwn Cyngor Ewrop ar Seiberdroseddu
	4.3 Llythyr oddi wrth Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Plant Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, Chwaraeon a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol ynghylch Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2023-24
	4.4 Gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan y Coleg Cymraeg Cenedlaethol yn dilyn y sesiwn dystiolaeth ar 13 Hydref
	4.5 Llythyr gan Gyfarwyddwr Creu Cymru at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, Chwaraeon a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol ynghylch y posibilrwydd o sefydliad masnachol yn cymryd rheolaeth dros Neuadd Dewi Sant yng Nghaerdydd
	7 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Atodol ar y Bil Diogelwch Ar-lein: Trafod yr Adroddiad drafft
	8 Trafod Cylch Gorchwyl drafft ar gyfer ymchwiliad yn y dyfodol i gysylltiadau rhwng Cymru ac Iwerddon
	9 Trafod gohebiaeth ddrafft



